
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET DELEGATED DECISIONS

COUNCILLOR E T J WAIN
PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT & PROPERTY

Wednesday, 11 July 2018 

1 REPORT & APPENDICES - DESIGNATION OF THE NEIGHBOURHOOD 
AREA FOR LEEK TOWN COUNCIL

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Delegated Decision Ref 2018/01

Date:  11 July 2018

Appendices Attached:

Appendix A: Summary of responses received to the consultation.

Appendix B: Application from Leek Town Council for designation of the parish as a 
Neighbourhood Area.

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To consider an application from Leek Town Council to designate a 
Neighbourhood Area for the Parish of Leek.

2. Recommendation
 
2.1 To approve the designation of the whole of the parish of Leek as a 

Neighbourhood Area.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 Leek Town Council has applied to the District Council for designation of the 
whole of their parish as a Neighbourhood Area.

3.2 A resolution made at the meeting of the Cabinet on 14th February 2017 
enables a decision concerning the application to be delegated to the Portfolio 
Holder for Planning, Development & Property, in consultation with ward 
members who represent the applicant neighbourhood area.  

3.3 When a Parish Council is applying for the whole of the parish to be 
designated, Regulations require a Local Planning Authority to designate the 
specified area as a Neighbourhood Area, if that application is considered to 

TITLE: Designation of the Neighbourhood Area for Leek 
Town Council 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:  Cllr Edwin Wain – Portfolio Holder for Planning, 
Development & Property

CONTACT OFFICER:     Pranali Parikh – Regeneration Manager

WARDS INVOLVED Leek

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



be valid and complete.  This application falls within the prescribed 
circumstances that require the Council to approve designation of the area 
applied for and the application is considered to be valid and complete.  These 
issues are considered further in section 7 of this report.

3.4 A four week period of public consultation has been held to publicise the 
application.  Twenty responses have been received, with one objection to the 
application.

3.5 The authority has eight weeks from first publicising the application to reach a 
decision.  The application must be determined by Friday 27th July 2018.

4. How this Report Links with Corporate Priorities

4.1 Given the broad nature of Neighbourhood Planning, there will be direct 
implications for all of the Council’s corporate priorities.

5. Options and Analysis

5.1 It is considered that the Council has only one option – to approve the 
application.

5.2 The Neighbourhood Planning (General) and Development Management 
Procedure (Amendment) Regulations 2016 came into force on October 1st 
2016.  Under the Regulations, in instances including when a Parish Council is 
applying for the whole of the parish to be designated, the Local Planning 
Authority must exercise its powers under section 61G of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 to designate the specified area as a 
Neighbourhood Area.  The Council is required to approve such an application 
once that application is considered to be valid and complete.  

5.3 The Localism Act sets out a number of issues that an authority must have 
regard to in considering whether an application is valid and complete.  These 
issues are considered in section 7 of this report.  The application from Leek 
Town Council is considered to be valid and complete.

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

None

6.2 Workforce

A Parish or Town Council will receive support from members of the 
Regeneration Service planning policy team in the preparation of their 
Neighbourhood Plan to help ensure that the plan will meet the Basic 
Conditions and be successful at Examination.

Page 4



6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Diversity and 
Equality Policies.

6.4 Financial Considerations

The main financial considerations will result from:
 Cost of examination (estimated £8,000).
 Cost of referendum (estimated £10,000).

The Council is eligible for Neighbourhood Planning New Burdens funding – 
paid by DCLG for supporting progression of Neighbourhood Plans.  2018/19 
claims criteria allow the Council to claim £5,000 for the first five 
neighbourhood areas designated. The limit of five areas applies to the total 
number of areas designated (i.e. it includes areas designated in previous 
years). Since the Council has previously designated six areas (Biddulph, 
Brown Edge, Checkley, Draycott in the Moors, Rushton and Forsbrook) and 
jointly designated a seventh, (Leekfrith - with designation led by the Peak 
District National Park Authority) the Council will not be eligible to claim a 
grant of £5,000 for designation of Leek parish.  The current claims criteria 
also allow grant payment of £20,000 to be claimed once a date is set for a 
referendum, following a successful examination.

6.5 Legal

Under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), the Council 
has a statutory duty to assist communities in the preparation of 
Neighbourhood Development Plans.  Applications for designation of a 
Neighbourhood Area are made under Neighbourhood Planning (General) 
Regulations 2012 and The Neighbourhood Planning (General) and 
Development Management Procedure (Amendment) Regulations 2016. 
Neighbourhood Areas are defined under the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 61G. The relevant considerations for the Council include: Before 
exercising it powers, the Council should consider:

1. Is the organisation making the application a relevant body (as prescribed 
by the Act this must be a Parish Council or, in unparished areas, a 
designated Neighbourhood Forum)?
2. Is the area identified for designation as a neighbourhood area considered 
appropriate (where the applicant is a Parish Council, the area identified could 
include the whole or any part of the Parish)?
3. Would the area more appropriately be designated a business area i.e. the 
area is wholly or predominately in business use?
4. Does the area overlap with another designated area?
5. Comments received during any public consultation.

If a valid application to designate the whole of a Parish is received, there is 
limited discretion available in relation to determining the application.  

Page 5



6.6 Sustainability

The Local Plan is subject to Sustainability Appraisal.  Neighbourhood Plans 
must contribute to the achievement of sustainable development.

6.7 Internal and External Consultation

The emerging Neighbourhood Development Plan will be subject to public 
consultation.

6.8 Risk Assessment

Risks are identified in the report.

Dai Larner
Executive Director (Place)

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

Localism Act 2011

The Neighbourhood Planning 
(General) Regulations 2012 (as 
amended)

The Neighbourhood Planning 
(General) and Development 
Management Procedure 
(Amendment) Regulations 2016

Leek Pranali Parikh
Phone: 07583 055366

7. Background and Detail 

7.1 Neighbourhood Planning is a tool introduced by the Localism Act 2011 that 
communities can use to help shape the future of their area. 

7.2 Preparation of a Neighbourhood Development Plan can be used to set out a 
vision for the future of an area, with associated planning policies for the use 
and development of land.  Neighbourhood Development Plans can say where 
new homes, shops or offices should go; which green spaces should be 
protected, and what new development should look like.

7.3 Neighbourhood Development Plans are optional and communities can choose 
whether or not to prepare one.

7.4 In areas with a Parish or Town Council, the Parish or Town Council is 
responsible for writing the Neighbourhood Development Plan. The area 

Page 6



covered by the Plan may be the whole parish boundary, or just part of it.  The 
area covered by the Plan is known as the Neighbourhood Area. 

7.5 New regulations for neighbourhood planning came into force on 1st October 
2016.  Under these regulations, local planning authorities must exercise their 
powers of designation to designate the neighbourhood area applied for, when: 
 a parish or town council applies for all of the parish area to be designated; 

or 
 applies to enlarge an existing designation of part of the parish to include all 

of the parish; or 
 when a LPA has not decided on an area designation within the established 

timeframes (8 weeks for a Neighbourhood Area).

7.6 The exception to this is if any of the area has already been designated (other 
than where a parish want to enlarge an existing designated area), or if there is 
an outstanding application for designation).

Leek Neighbourhood Area Designation

7.7 An application for designation of a Neighbourhood Area was received from 
Leek Town Council on 11th April 2018.  The application is for designation of 
the whole of the Parish.  The Council is required to approve this application 
once the application is considered to be valid and complete.  

7.8 In determining the validity of the application, the Council must have regard to 
the following issues: 

(a) The desirability of designating the whole of the area of a parish council as 
a Neighbourhood Area.  

The Parish Council in their application (Appendix B) confirms that it is 
appropriate to designate the whole parish area as a Neighbourhood Area.

(b) The desirability of maintaining the existing boundaries of areas already 
designated as neighbourhood areas, and ensuring areas do not overlap.

The Council designated Leekfrith Neighbourhood Area in March 2015; 
Biddulph, Brown Edge and Checkley Neighbourhood Areas in February 
2016, Draycott in the Moors Neighbourhood Area in July 2016, Rushton 
Neighbourhood Area in February 2017 and Forsbrook Neighbourhood 
Area in April 2018.  A map of all designated areas is carried on the District 
Council’s web-site.  The current application does not overlap with the 
existing designations. 

(c) Consideration of whether the area should be designated as a business 
area.

Designation of a business area would only apply if an area is wholly or 
predominantly business in nature.  This is not the case for Leek parish.

Page 7



7.9 In determining the completeness of the application, the Council must have 
regard to whether the application included:

 
(a) a map which identifies the area to which the area application relates.

A map is included with the application (at Appendix B).

(b) a statement explaining why this area is considered appropriate to be 
designated as a neighbourhood area.

The letter of application explains that the Town Council is seeking a plan that 
will enable local residents engage with and help determine the future 
development of Leek.

(c) a statement that the organisation or body making the area application is a 
relevant body for the purposes of section 61G of the 1990 Town and 
Country Planning Act.

The letter of application confirms that the Town Council is a relevant body for 
making the application.

7.10 The application made by Leek Town Council is thus considered to be valid 
and complete and to fall within the prescribed circumstances that require the 
District Council to approve the application.

7.11 Where a town or parish council has applied for a designation and the area to 
which the application relates is the whole of the area of the town / parish 
council, the authority must determine the application eight weeks from the 
date immediately following that on which the application is first publicised.  In 
this case, the application must be determined by Friday 27th July 2018.

Consultation

7.12 The Council publicised the application for a four week period of public 
consultation that ran from 31st May to 28th June 2018.  Publicity included the 
following:

 Details of the application were carried on the Council’s web-site, along 
with how representations could be made.

 Documentation was made available for inspection at the Council offices 
(Moorlands House, Leek), as well as at Leek Library and Leek Town 
Council.

 A letter or e-mail was sent to all those on the Council’s Local Plan 
consultation database, resident in, or known to have a development 
interest in, the Parish. 

 A poster detailing the application and how to respond was provided to 
Leek Town Council for display on notice boards.

 A media release was issued.

Page 8



7.13 At the end of the consultation period, the Council had received 20 responses, 
with one objection to the application.  Nine responses were received from 
local residents, two from developers, one from Leek and District Civic Society 
and the remaining eight from Statutory Bodies including: Sport England, 
Natural England, Highways England, Historic England, National Grid and the 
Environment Agency 

7.14 Responses are summarised in Appendix A.

Page 9



Appendix A

Summary of responses received to the consultation

Ref Name / Organisation Summary response

1 J Davies Support.
2 Sport England The Neighbourhood Plan should reflect and 

comply with national planning policy for sport as 
set out in the NPPF.  Note that Sport England is 
a statutory consultee with respect to protecting 
playing fields.  Advice and support offered.

3 E Sharratt Support for the Neighbourhood Plan Area 
covering the whole Parish.

4 E Sharratt (2) Support.
5 L Mcfaul Concern expressed that the Neighbourhood Plan 

might result in site allocations not currently 
identified in the SMDC Local Plan.

6 B Daniel The neighbourhood area should include the site 
allocated for employment use at the east of 
Brooklands Way, Leekbrook (outside the Leek 
parish boundary).

7 National Grid Wishes to be advised of future consultations in 
relation to Leek Neighbourhood Plan.

8 Halton Would object to new development in Leek.
9 Highways England Wishes to be advised of future consultations in 

relation to Leek Neighbourhood Plan.
10 Historic England Advises in relation to their statutory role in the 

development plan process.  Advice and support 
offered.  Details of available resources provided.

11 Staffordshire County 
Council

Wishes to be advised of future consultations in 
relation to Leek Neighbourhood Plan.

12 Natural England Advises in relation to their statutory role in the 
development plan process.  Advice and support 
offered.  Details of available resources provided.

13 Emery Planning on 
behalf of Wainhomes 
(North West) Ltd

No objection to the proposed neighbourhood 
area, but wishes to be fully informed and 
involved in the process. Wainhomes is the owner 
of 1.6 hectares of land adjacent to Wardle 
Gardens, Leekbrook. Detailed representations 
have been made to the Submission Version of 
the Staffordshire Moorlands Local Plan in 
relation to this site, and wider housing and 
employment land issues.

14 Gladman Developments 
Ltd

Highlights key requirements to which the 
preparation of the Leek Neighbourhood Plan 
should have regard. Wishes to participate in the 
Neighbourhood Plan’s preparation and to be 
notified of further developments and 
consultations in this regard.

Page 10



Ref Name / Organisation Summary response

15 K Berrisford Supports and wishes to be involved in the plan 
preparation process to ensure local 
representation.

16 L Beighton Support.
17 L Roberts Support.
18 Environment Agency The Neighbourhood Plan should support and 

encourage the protection and enhancement of 
both the River Churnet and its corridor wherever 
possible.  Advice provided in relation to site 
allocations and flood risk.

19 Coal Authority No comments to make.
20 Leek and District Civic 

Society
It is unreasonable to expect organisations to 
respond in four weeks.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Leek Neighbourhood Area

© Crown copyright and database rights 2018 Ordnance Survey 100018384.

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Report & Appendices - Designation of the Neighbourhood Area for Leek Town Council
	Leek Neighbourhood Area map
	Letter of application 11.04.18


